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SUBMISSION OF AFFID VITS BY THE DEFENSE 
PURSUANT TO THE ORDER OF THE TRIBUNAL 

DATED 5 JULY 1946.

23 July 1946.

COMMISSIONER:

George R. Taylor.

(THE COMMISSION CO IVENED AT 1000 HOURS.)

THE S.D.

THE COIISSIOIIER: The commission will convene for the

purpose of hearing the affidavits of the SD as submitted by Dr. Gawlik. 

We are ready to proceed.

DR. GAVLIK: My first aim is to prove the tasks, aims and 

activities of the SD since its founding up to the establishment of the 

RSEA, and in connection with this that the SD did not take part in any 

conspiracy in order to commit crimes according to Article 6 of the 

statute, nor did it support any such conspiracy.

The affidavits covering this period of time are to support 

the testimony of Dr. Spaengler, who has been asked for and has not yet 

appeared for interrogation.

SD AFPIDAVIT NO. 27 SD has been made y Dr. Al ert Karl
0uu C —-----------------------------

Tilhelm\and refers first to the time between 1931 and 30 January, 1933.

It speaks of first of the tasks and the offices of the leaders and 

lecturers, the meetings aid the offices for the protection of the General 

SS. Then it goes on to say that the activities vrere entirely without
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importance • In the entire of Cermany, there were about twenty to twenty 

five parsons employed and about twenty to twenty five honorary persons 

don' this work. They had not been trained, there was no responsible net 

of confidence men. Every support or condition for an espionage system 

was lacking. The members did not attempt to support a group of conspira­

tors. The activities vrere considered y the Repiblic as legal and refer- 

ring from the ti e from January 30, 1933 until the establishment of the 

RSHA, the task of the SS intelligence organization gradually fell away 

altogether. In 1933 or in 1934, the SD main office of its own was 

established. The task was to observe and evaluate the information gleamed 

for the intellectual disputes of the party. Fro 1933 until 1936 there 

were not as yet a sufficient number of men or honorary men for a net of 

intelligence work or news service. In 1938 the Central Division 11,1 vras 

done away with. This Department concerned itself with information con­

cerning opponents. The central division 11,1 was further built up. The 

vital new service for the Inlands-SD was combi ed in Amt ill.

In 1939 there was an end to this development because of the 

placing of Amt ill within the RSHA. No work was carried on in secret. 

Confidence men were not obliged to keep their activities secret. There 

were no spying activities, there was no close communion between the 

Gestapo and the SD. No orders were given to supervise election. The per­

secution of Jews did not belong to the tasks of the SD. The SD or parts of 

this organization did not take part in the Jewish boycott of 4 April 1933 

and in the program of the 9th of November, 1938.there was no support of any 

conspiracy.



044-0004
Com. A.
Take 1-Pg. 3.
Meehan
23 July
Affidavits.

THE COMISSIONER: Are there any objections on the part of the 

prosecution to this affidavit?

CAPTAIN CONKLING: No objection.

THE COMMISSIONER: The affidavit, es submitted, will be marked

SD No. 27 for identification.

*************************

DR. CAWLIK: I now submit AFFIDAVIT SD NO. 28 by Dr. Albert Karl

Wilhelm

With this affidavit I want to refute the charge of the prosecution 

that the SD had the task to gather secret informstion about actual or probable 

opponents of the Nazi group fo that proper steps for the destruction or for 

the injury of the opposition could be taken.

I refer here to the trial brief - Gestapo and SD statement of 

evidence ill B, page 17 of the English text and page 16 of the German trans­

lation.
3 • l

Dr. Albert Karl Wilhelm in his affidavit said that the SD was given 

the following task y Heydrich, first, that the carrying on of the intelligence 

and information service of the SD must e aboe and eyond individual cases,

that the SD had not the task of findi Ig out individual cases in order to 

have them suffer executively. This was the tasks of the police offices, which 

were organized for this purpose.

THE COMISSIONBR: Any objections to this affidavit as submitted? 

CAPTAIN CONKLING: No objections.

THE CCIMISSIONER: The affidavit as submitted will be marked

SD AFFIDAVIT NO. 28 for identification.

*******************
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DR. GATLIK: SD Affidavit No. 29 was given by Hans Timmerma in. 

This affidavit concerns itself with the tasks, aims and activities of the 

brancheoffices and the confidential agents, who worked there, and that in 

connection with this, that the aims, tasks and activities of the branch 

offices and confidential agents was not one of supporting any conspiracy 

or taking part in the committing of crimes against/peace, war or crimes 

against humanity.

In this affidavit, Tirmermann says that the task of the confi­

dential agents was to hand in objective reports concerning the general 

public feeling and thus take part in finding out what were the deeper 

possibility for any mal developments and irregularities. The confidential 

agents were not supposed to teke part i the impunitive prosecution of 

individual persons. The names of confidential men were in principle lot 

to e mentioned. These confidential acents did not belong to any secret 

conspiracy group with the aim of committing crimes against peace, war and 

humanity. The branch offices wrere not a link in the chain of an espionage 

organization for the purpose of keepi g the conspirators and criminals in 

power, or supporting them, or in themselves taking part in crimes against 

peace, humanity or war.

THE COMMISSIONER: Any objections to the affidavit as submitted? 

CAPTAIN CONKLING: . No objections.

THE COMMISSIONER: Let the affidavit as submitted be marked 

SD AFFIDAVIT NO. 29 for identif ication.

*************************

L
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DR. GAWLIK: The next is SD AFFIDAVIT NO. 30 given by Theodor 

Zeller. This affidavit treats with the repudiation of the charge of the 

prosecution, that the SD carried on its work in secret and refers to the 

trial brief against the Gestapo and SD, statement of affidavit 3-B, page 

17 of t. e English text and page 16 of the German translation.

In this affidavit Zeller mentions that the activities of the SD 

were not secret.

THE CODISSIONER: Are there any objections to the affidavit 

as submitted?

CAPTAIN COIKLIIG: No objections.

TEE COM ISSIOIER: The Affidavit, as submitted, will he marked 

for identification as SD AFFIDAVIT 10. 30.

************************

DR. GATLIK: SD AFFIDAVIT NO. 31 is given by Dr. Laube Horst.

It concerns the tasks, aims and activities of the officers employed writhin 

the SD as confidence men of the Reich state and community. In connection 

with this, that the airs, tasks and activities were not such as to support 

a conspiracy or commit crimes against peace, war or humanity. Dr. Laube 

Horst says in his affidavit that the employees who were employed within 

the SD as confidential agents never wanted to promote by means of their 

work any conspiracy for the preparation of an aggressive war or for the 

committine of crimes. They honestly endeavored to place their knowledge 

and experience in the service of peaceful inner and foreign political tasks.
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After the outbreak of war, they elieved that they were o liged to 

support the Government by means of a defensive war by means of their 

activities within the SD. These officers have shown that their work 

was apart from any spying, boasting or agency work as far as their reports 

were concerned and adhered to the principles of law and justice of order, 

cleanliness and economy.

THE CODUITSSIOITER: Any objections to the submission of SD 

Affidavit No. 317

CAPTAI CONKLING: No objections.

TEE con ISSIOIIER; Let the affidavit as submitted be marked 

SD AFFIDAVIT NO. 31.

**************************

DR. GAWLIK: SD ‘FFIDA^IT NO. 32 is given by Otto Ohlendorr. 

It is supposed to refute the charge of the prosecution that the SD was 

a part of the SS during the entire time from its founding until the end 

of the war, and introduction to the trial brief against the Gestapo and 

SD - page 12 of the English text and page 13 of the German Translation - 

argument and conclusion page 67 of the English text and page 61 of the 

German translation.

We want to prove that in the year 1934, the SD was an independant 

orga ization. In SD Affidavit No. 32 ohlendorf says that since 1934 the 

development of the SD took part entirely apart from the tasks originally 

set by the SS. Only ten percent of the mem' ers of the SD inland intelli­

gence service came from the General SS. By far the greatest majority of 

honorary workers and confidential men - about 903 of the members of the SD

Inland were no SS mem'-ers at all and did not become mem’ers. The fulfillment
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of the mission, as developed by the SD Inland itself vas not bound to 

the person of the Reichsfuehrer SS but on the contrary, he restricted 

the development.

THZ COISSIOIT R: Any objections to the affidavit as sub­

mitted?

CAPTAIN CONKLING: No objections.

THE COMISSIONER: The affidavit as submitted will be marked 

SD AFPIDAVIT NO. 32 for identification.

************************* **
DR. GATLIK: The next AFFIDAVIT SD NO. 33 was also submitted 

or made by Otto Ohlendorf. It contains the charges of the prosecution 

that the SD had played a role in the execution of one or more of the 

missions of the SS. (Indictment of the SS 11, page 8 of the German Trans­

lation. )

I wish to prove that this was no longer the case in the period 

since 1934. Otto Ohlendorf says in his affidavit the individual main 

offices, under the jurisdiction of Himmler, did not operate jointly or 

i 1 cooperation automatically. It is not correct that the SD main office 

carried out a definite special mission within the frame-work of the SS. 

There was no main office that could in any manner be termed a leadership 

office. The SD-Inland Amt 111 of the RSEA received its work, aims and 

general activities not from a high command of the SS. This is also true 

of the fact that the duties as to work, aims and general activities were 

directly or indirectly not given as a suppliment of the work, aims and 

general activities of the SS main offices. The SD-Inland was rather in-
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dependant of the tasks of the SS and police. It developed and carried on 

its activities as an independant organization.

THE COISSIOITER: Any objections to the affidavit as submitted? 

CAPTAIN CONKLIIG: No objections.

T C 12 ISSIC ■ R: Let the affidavit as submitted, be marked SD 

Affidavit No. 33 for identification.

Let SD Affidavits 32 p :d 33 be consolidated as one exhibit for 

the purpose of identification and for the further reason that the two affi­

davits were made by the same person. Dr. Gawlik do you have any objections?

DR. GAWLIK: No objections.

**************************

DR. GAVLIK: Concerning my next argument, I submit three affidavits. 

ATEIDAVITSSD 34 - 35 and36. These three affidavits refer to the fact that 

the SD and Gestapo have elvays been independant organizations and were not 

combined in a uniform police system. (Repudiation of the charge of the 

Prosecution Statement of Evidence II B and 111 • of the Trial Brief 9 and 

17 of the English Translation.

-Hi -jAVIT NO. 34 was made by Richard Hildebrandt and gives 

proof that by means of the Higher SS and Police Fuehrer a cooperation or a 

union of such a kind between the SD and the Gestapo did not take nlace. The 

higher SS and Police Fuehrer was not head of the SD-Iland. it was not his 

work to give any instructions concerning work, nor discipline the organization. 

The personal policy of the sD-Inlrnd was completely independant of him.

THB COIMISSIOIER: Are there any objections to this affidavit as 

submitted?
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COLONEL ORLOV: No objections.

THE COISSIONER: The affidavit, as submitted, will be marked 

SD AFFIDAVIT NO. 34 for identification.

************************

DR. GAWLIK: AFFIDAVIT SD ’TO. 35 made by Dr.Hoffmann,Karl-Heinz 

says that by means of the sstat lishment of the office of inspectors of the 

Security Police and SD, the Gestapo and the SD were not united into a 

police system and one unified office.

THE COMMISSIOIER: Are there any objections to the affidavit 

as submitted?

COL CIPL SMIRNOV: No objections.

THE COMMISSIONER* Let the affidavit, as submitted, be marked 

SD AFFIDAVIT NO. 35 for identification.

************************

DR. GAWLIK* SD AFFIDAVIT NO. 36 submitted by Otto Ohlendorf 

proves that the decree of the Reichsminister of the Interior of November 

11, 1938 - PS 1638 - did not correspond to the actual relationship to 

the SD and Security Police, but only represents an intended regulation 

in the picture and therefore cannot ' e co sidered as proof that it belonged 

to the airs and tasks of the SD to support the Security Police.

THE COMMISSIONER: Any objections to the affidavit as submitted?

COLC TEL SIIRNOV: We are of the opirion that statements in the 

affidavit are incorrect, but Has the affidavit has been properly given and 

made it is impossible to raise an objection now, however, we shall submit 

or ow affidavits later to refute them.

THE COMMISSIONER* The Commission grants this privilege to the
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prosecution on all these affidavits, but the recerd will show the objection 

to any affidavit as submitted.

I note from the record you have stetements from Otto Ohlendorf 

in SD Affidavits 32, 33, 36, 40, 44 and 46. Is that the same person?

DR. GATLIK: Yes.

TFE COMMISSIONER: In order to clarify the record before the 

Tribunal, I suggest that we consolidate the six affidavits by Ohlendorf 

as one exhibit in order that he may get his test irony before the Tribunal 

in one affidavit rather than in six affidavits. Any objections. Dr. Gawlik?

DR. GAULLIK: No objections.

THE COMISSIONER: Let the record shov that SD AFFIDAVITS NOS. 32, 

33, 36, 40, 44 and 46 are consolidated for the pirpose of the record in 

submission to the Tribunal.

Let the affidavit*ss submitted be marked SD AFFIDAVIT NO. 36.

********** **************

DR. GAWLIK: I now submit Affidavits Nos. 37 and 38, which are 

a suppliment to the affidavit of DR. Wilhelm Hoettle - PS 2614 of November 

5, 1945. Both affidavits refer to the fact that Hoettle was only employed 

with the SD-Inland in Austria and that he does not have a sufficient knowledge 

of the tasks, aims end activities of the SD-Inland within the boundaries of 

December 31, 1937. (The tasks and objectives of the SD 111 B of the 

Trial brief, page 18 of the English text.)

SD AFFIDAVIT by Dr. Wilhelm Hoettl says that he was employed 

within the SD service sector in Vienna, from March, 1933 until the simmer of 

1939, that later he was only employed in the foreign intelligence service 

division. He does not know of the activities of the SD-Inland within the
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German Reich proper. He says that the kovledge concerning the tasks, ai s 

and activities of the SD-Inland within the German Reich proper were established 

in the main o the basis of reports. These reports did not show th t the 
—

SD-Inland was taking part in a conspiracy for the committing of crimes against 

peace, war and humanity. The SD did not possess any immediately influence 

on the selection of the leaders of the party.

COL TEL ORLOV; I have an objection against this affidavit as it 

is not in accord with the rules concerning the submission of affidavits bv 

the Defense pursuant to the order of the Tribunal dated July 5, 1946.

ll
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COLONEL ORLOV: I have an objection against 

this affidavit. The Witness, Dr. Hoettl, who himself was 

employed by the SD is basing his testimony solely on, as 

I mentioned before, these reports, and theser eports are 

of no impar tance or interest to this Commission.

DR. GAULIKs I quite agree with the Russian. 

Prosecutor that Dr. Hoettl is not a well enough informed 

witness, but Dr. Hoettl is a witness fcr the Prosecution, 

and this sworn affidavit has been submitted by ma in order 

to prove that the witness is incompetent to testify. I an 

grateful for the fact that the Russian Prosecutor agrees 

with me.

COLONEL SMIRNOV: The matter at issue here is 

to find out whether the affidavit submitted by Dr. Hoettl 

was used to establish positive or negative facts.

DR. GAULIK: The affidavit by Dr. William Hoettl 

was submitted by the Prosecution in suppart of it’s indict­

ment of the SD.

MR. TAYLOR: Colonel Orlov, the affidavit as sub­

mitted was for the purpose of refuting the statement and 

affidavit of the affiant as submitted in the Prosecution 

brief, on page 18 of the Prosecution brief.

DR. GAULIK: I want to disprove what the Russian 

Prosecutor has just aaid, that is, that Hoettl has not 

a sufficient knowledge concerning this topic or this theme.
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COLONEL ORLOV: Could we have a short recess to 

read this affidavit?

MR. TAYLOR: Yes, the Commission will recess 

for t en minutes.

A ten minute recess is t aken

COLONEL SMIRNOV: Mr. Commissioner, I am of 

the opinion that the JMPEMEKR supplement of the affidavit 

by Dr. Hoettl should not be accepted. The affidavit as 

has been submitted does not only concern the German Reich 

proper but also the occupied territories, and speaks of 

the territories within the Reich, as well as in the occupied 

territories after 1938 and 1938, whereas, the supplement 

also refers to this and nothing new can be added to what 

has already been said in the first affidavit. Therefore, 

the supplement to the first affidavit should not be 

accepted.

CAPTAIN CONKLIN: I think it is well understood 

that the SD is pr etty much the same in Austria and Germany 

in their tasks, and as long as the man Hoettl was a qualified 

member in Austria, I think it is immaterial whether he 

belonged to the SD in the German Reich and knew their 

plan.

MR. TAYLOR: I think it is all right. For the 

purpose of the record let it be noted that the Russien
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Prosecution a hd the American Prosecution have objected 

to the affidavit, which is marked SD No. 37 for identi­

fication, as being irrelevant, and that the objection 

will be submitted to the Tribunal for their ruling. 

The affidavit itself will be makA marked SD #37 for 

identification.

DR. GAULIK: I should like to add that I do 

not want to prove with this affidavit anything concerning 

the activities and objectives of the SD, My sole purpose 

in submitting this affidavit is to prove that Dr. Hoe ttl 

was employed with the SD from “arch 1938 until the summer 

of 1939 in Germany.

MR. TAYLOR: Very well, the r ecord will show 

that. What about affidavit No. 38 now?

3H34******4**

DR. GAULIK: Affidavit No. 38 was submitted by 

Thee Gahrmann. Thee Gahrmann refutes the statement 

of Hoettl concerning the acitivities of Group III B. 

Group III B did not issue any instructions ar directives 

in writing nor orally, which showed that the SD considered 

the foreign workers in Germany inferior. The instructions 

of Ampt III B rather were issued with the purpose of 

telling about the attitude and opinions of the foreign 

workrs in the different spheres of life.

MR. TAYLOR: Is there any objection to affidavit

No. 38?

i
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COLONEL ORLOV: No objection.

MR. TAYLOR: Let the affidavit submitted be 

marked SD No. 38 for identification.

4***4*4*4****

DR. GAULIK: The next affidavit, SD No. 39, was 
concerns

given by Adam Foertsch and/zaxRkxx the repudiation of the 

charge of the Prosecution that the SD had an immediate 

and authoritative influence upon the selection of the 

Nazi leaders. (See trial brief against the Gestapo and 

the SD, Statement of Evider e III B, page 18 of the English 

text) Mr. Foertsch says in his affidavit that in the 

former gau of upper Bavaria the SD had no material or 

authoritative influence upon ±kuxx the selection of the 

party leaders.

COLONEL ORLOV: No objection.

MR. TAYLOR: The affidavit submitted will be 

marked MM SD No. 39 for identification.

*********

DR. GAULIK: My next affidavit is SD No. 40, 

by Otto Ohlendorff, and is supposed to replace the testimony 

of Seibert, whom I a sk d fa? and applied for- and who has 

not yet appeared here. This a ff idavit concerns itself 

with the aims, tasks and activities of Group IH-D of the



Corn A
Take 2, page 5 
Cook
1100 - 1130 
23 July 1946 
Affidavits

-0017

RSHA, and in zaAMzk connection with this that Group III D 

did not support any conspiracy and did not take part in the 

committing of crimes against peace, war crimes and crimes 

against humanity. Otto Ohlendorff says in his affidavit 

that it was the task of Group III D to the office that 

concerned themselves with economic questions concerning 

any mal developments which had been works d out by the numerous 

trained, confidential agents, and thus to observe especially 

any critical voices within the population and to make 

positive suggestions.

GROUP III D, Economy of the SD, especially did 

not take part in the deportation of nationals of the occupied 

territories far forced labor and in the control of these 

foreign laborers.

MR. TAYLOR: Any objection to the affidavit as 

submitted?

COLONEL ORLOV: No objection.

MR. TAYLOR: For the purpose of the record let 

the affidavit be marked SD No. 40 for identification and 

reference made to the other affidavit submitted.

469*******
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DR. GAWLIK: AFFIDAVIT #41 to ^46« inclusive refer to the Einsatzgruppen

Actions Group in the East, and these affidavits refer to war crimes. (See Statement 

of Evidence # VI A of the Trial Brief, page 25 of the English text). The first 

affidavit SD #41, submitted by KARL HEINZ BENDT, speaks (a) of the action groups 

with the Army Groups, A, B, C, D, and that they did not belong to the organization 

of the inland SD, Amt III, R,S.H,A. (b) The members of the inland SD, Amt III, 

R,S.H.A. had in general no knowledge of the mass executions in the East.

CAPT. CONKLIN: No objection.

MR. TAYLOR: Let the affidavit be marked SD #4,2.

DR. GAILIK: SD #42, submitted by WALTER SCHELLENBERG says that the 

Action Groups employed with the Army Groups, A, B, C, D in the East did not be­

long to the foreign intelligence service, Amt VI, R.S.H.A.

CAPT. CONKLIN: No objection.

MR. TAYLOR: Since there is no objection, let the affidavit be 

marked SD #42.

DR. GAWLIK: SD #43, HEINZ WANNINGER says that the Action groups 

were not composed of volunteers.

MR. TAYLOR: Any objection to the affidavit?

CAPT. CONKLIN: No.

MR. TAYLOR: The affidavit will be marked SD #43.

DR. GAWLIK: SD #44, also by OTTO OHIENDORF says that with the Action 

Groups, A,B,C,D, no parts of the organization of the SD offices III, VI and VII 

were used.

MR. TAYLOR: Let the affidavit be marked SD 444,
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DR. GAWLIK: SD #4$ byEOIN SCHULZ says that the selection of Chiefs of 

the Actions Groups and of the action commandos did not take place according to 

their previous capacities, nor according to their activities as Chiefs of 

Office, Gruppenleiter, or Consultant in the offices of the R.S.H.A. or as an in­

spector of the Security Police and SD in a definite sector or as a Chief of Office 

of a group of the Security Police or SD.

MR. TAYLOR: Any objection.

The affidavit will be marked 3d #45 for identification.

DR. GAWLIK: Affidavit #46 also by OTTO OHLENDORF says that the Action 

Groups with the Army Groups, A, B,C,D were special organizations.

MR. TAYLOR: Any objections to the affidavit?

Let the affidavit be marked SD #46 for identification.

For the purpose of submitting to the Tribunal, reference is made to affidavits #46, 

44, 40, 36, 33 and 32, being made by the same affiant, Otto Ohlendorf.

DR. GAWLIK: My next three affidavits SD #47, and 49 are to prove 

that the members of the service districts of the branch offices and the confidence 

men had no knowledge of the activities of the Action Groups employed in the East.

As follows, SD #47 made by WILHLEM DYROFF for Gau Sued—Hannover, Braunschweig;

SD #48 by KARL HEINZ BENDT, for SD Senior Sector Naik North, Stettin, Breslau, Duessel- 

dorfj SD #49, sm ADOLF OTT, for the SD Sector Neustadt, Weinstrasse and Saarbruecken. 

MR. TAYLOR: Any objection to the affidavits?

Let the affidavits be marked SD 447, 48, and 49 for identification. 
__ ______________ ___________ ____

DR. GAWLIK: My next affidavit, SD #50 by HEINZ WANNINGER, is to

prove that Puetz was an official of the Gestapo, and not as mentioned on Page 26 of the
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English Text of the Trial Brief against the Gestapo and SD, a member of the SD.

MR. TAYLOR: Any objections to the affidavit?

Affidavit as submitted will be marked SD 450 for

identification

DR. GAWLIK: The next affidavit Sp #51 by WALTER SCHELLENBERG refers

to crimes against war. Statement of Evidence VI F of the Trial Brief, Page 54 of 

the English Text). Statement of Evidence — the SD had no hand in lynching justice. 

Schellenberg says as a supplement to the affidavit of 18 November 1945, 2990 P.S.: 

”The hostile attitude towards English and American aviators was not to be promoted 

by the SD, but by the Security Police.”

CAPT. CONKLIN: No objection.

MR. TAYLOR: Let the affidavit be marked Sp #51 for identification.

DR. GAWLIK: My next affidavit is SD #52 by WILHELM KEITEL, referring to

the following. In the documents of the indictment, 553 P.S., 498 P.S. and 532 P.S., 

the Security Police is to be understood by any reference to the SD not the inland 

intelligence service Amt III nor the foreign intelligence service Amt VI or Amt VII. 

In this affidavit Keitel says: "During the ±rz trial in Nurnberg, I realized that the 

conception which is also prevelant in military circles concerning the kakx tasks and 

work of the SD as a police executive organ is not correct. It is raaher the case that 

very often in military language and in regulations, the letters Sp are mentioned - if 

on the other hand the competent organ of police with executive power is really meant. 

Therefore, it really should have said Chief of Security Police and SD, instead of just 

the abbreviation SD. As far as the high command of the Army is concerned, I can de­

clare that in some of the offices, there was a mistaken conception concerning the 

authority of the SD in this respect, and that this has led to a wrong use of the 
abbreviation SD.” F /



Com. A.
Take 3 - page 4 
1130 - 1200
Winkler 

23 July 1946 
Affidavits - SD

H1044 -002

MR. TAYLOR: Any objection to the affidavit?

COL. SMIRNOV: No objection.

MR. TAYLOR: The affidavit submitted will be marked SD #52 for identification.

DR. GAWLIK: The next affidavit, Sp #53 by EMIL PROESCHEL, refers to the 

persecution of the Jews. Statement of Evidence VII A, page 60 of the English text of 

the Trial Brief). Proeschel says that the SD did not have a hand in Anti-Semtic 

programs of the year 1938.

MR. TAYLOR: Any objection?

The affidavit submitted will be marked Sp #53 for identification.

D'

DR. GAWLIK: The next affidavit #54 refers to the persecution of the

Jews in France. The affidavit was submitted by DR. HOERST E 1.123.W: LAUBE, and he

says that the SD did not have a hand in Jewish persecutions in France,

CAPT. CONKLIN: No objection.

MR. TAYLOR: Affidavit will be marked SD #54 for identification

-b-----------------------------------------------------------------
of THEO GAHFMANN

DR. GAWLIK: Next affidavit/concerns itself with the persecution of

the church. Statement of evidence VII-B, page 63 of the English translation of cha 

Trial Brif. "The activities of the church commission of the SD was not tv oring 

about measures to persecute the church. The reports of the Sp only were to give 

leadership an indication of the religious movement within the various denominations 

and the result of measures by the leadership groups. The confidence men of the SD 

did not serve as spies to cooperate with the Gestapo activities against church members 

The SD Amt III did not concern itself at sll with any church questions. The church 

committee of the Gestapo was not the successor of kwwg Abteilung 11/13.”

0
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MR. TAYLOR: Any objections?

Affidavit as submitted will be marked SD #55 for identification. 
___ _________-_____________ ___________ _________

DR. GAWLIK: The next affidavit is supposed to take the place of 

HIMUT FROMM who already ak had been accepted as a witness, but could not be heard 

any more. I want to prove with this the duties, goals, and activities and methods 

of the SD in the Government General, and its connection with the fact that the 

members of the SD which were active in the Government General did not aid in the 

conspiracies and in the carrying out of crimes, according to article VI of the 

statute. "In the Government General there was no cooperation between the SD and 

the Gestapo. The Abteilung III were separated both by organization in their duties 

and activities from the offices of the Security Police. Persons which had to do 

nothing were not connected with the SD or Amt III seem to be members of the SD in the 

Government General. The SD with the Government General only had the intelligence 

goal. The SD in the Government General did not participate in the conspiracy. The 

SD did not have a special function in the Senuxa Government General to find out and to 

execute persons that were racially or politically un anted. The SD in the Government 

General was not responsible for the erection and the administration of concentration 

camps or for the extermination camp through forced labor and mass murder. The SD 

did not carry or did not have to carry out the measures which are mentioned in 

documents L-37, L-53, and L-63. The Sd did not have any prisons in the Government 

General. The only prisons zx±k were of the Gestapo. The SD did not participate 

in the deportation of citizens of the occupied territories in the Government General.” 

MR. TAYLOR: Any objections to the affidavit?

CAPT. CONKLIN: No objections.

MR. TAYLOR: Affidavit will be marked SD #56 for identification.
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DR. GAWLIK: I want to prove my next four documents, Nos. 57 to 

60 inclusive, that the membership of the SD and Amt III was usually not 

voluntary but having its basis in the decree of an order.

3D No. 57 being Bernhard Dilger, formerly of Gau Kaernten. 

Membership of the 3D was according to official order 57.2 percent of male, 

and 53.8 percent of female members; 55*9 percent of all members of the 3D 

belonged to the organization due to result of official decrees.

COLONEL SMIRNOV: I believe that it would be better instead of 

ting these affidavits, the defense vould present these official decrees 

according to which these people were Joined. I think then we could judge 

as to the per cert age of the people that had to go to the organization.

DR. GATLIK: I don't know for sure right now,but I believe I 

do have that decree in my document book. However, if I do not, I, of course, 

am ready to introduce this document into my document book.

COLCNEL SMIRNOV: I believe it is only possible for us to discuss 

these affidavits,if we have the decrees in front of us,and if we can look 

at that decree, because I personally do not believe that such a decree does 

actually exist.

MR. TAYLGR: The defense having stated that it would submit the 
~PDdecree in 2M‘do cone nt book, viith that understanding the affidavit Nos.

57, 58, 59 and 60 vill be received and marked for identification.

DR GAWLIK: Yes. 3D No. 58, Dr. Hans Ehlich. The composition of 

Group 3B; the membership of 85 percent of the members of Group 3B was 

due to official decrees. The 3 Abteilungsleitern section chiefs, two 

belonged to the 3D due to this official order. 82 percent of the experts.

and committee members belonged to the 3D due to these official orders.
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3D No. 59, Karl-Heins Bendt. SD-Leitabschnitt Duesseldorf. The 31 male 

members 15 belonged to the 3D due to official decrees - individual mem­

bership due to official decrees of 3 section chiefs only; of 4 aids three; 

of 11 liaison chiefs four; of 7 managers of liaison positions three, and 

of 6 aids four.

3D No. 60. Adolf Ott. SD-Abschnitt Saarbruecken, Gaugebiet Saarpfalz einsch- 

liesslich Lothringen. 76 members of which 34 belonged to the 3D due to offi­

cial orders.

The next two affidavits, Nos. 61 and 62, concern themselves with Amt VI, 

and so far I have not presented any witnesses,or any affidavits concerning 

Amt VI,and therefore this summary of 61 is a little bit more sensitive. 

The duties, goals and activities of Amt VI, especially that it was not one 

of the duties, activities and goals of Amt VI to aid a conspiracy, or crimes 

against the peace, war crimes, or crimes against humanity. Also the organiza- 
and

tion of Amt VI was completely independent/of membership of the organization 

of Amt VI was in general not voluntary due to official decrees; and, fur­

ther,that the activity of Group VIS was not generally known, partly not 

even to the chief of Amt VI.

3D No. 61, Walter Schellenberg. The Foreign Intelligence Service, Amt VI was 

• an independant organization which was in no connection with Amt III,IV, or

VII, or the ISHA,andthe S3. One can speak of an official connection with 

Amt III and VII only partially, and vd.th certain limitations . The Amt VI 

did not particpate in a cons iracy to carry out crimes according to Article 

6 of the Statute,and which did not aid in such conapiracy in any way. The 

reasons and activities of Group VIS were not completely open,and partly

were know only to a small circle,and partly was not known at all to 

members of Amt VI.
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Amt IV did not particpate in war crimes, as there mentioned in the

trial brief against the Gestapo and 3D under No. 4A-2L.

DR. GAILIK: 6A.

THE INTERPRETER: 6A-2L, and it was not used to carry out these

crimes. The Amt VI did not give any orders concerning mass executions in 

the East. The members of Amt VI did not know of the executions which were 

carried out by special commandos in the East. A large part of the per­

sonnel of the Foreign Information, or Foreign Intelligence Service of Amt VI 

and military were not volunteers,but rather their activity was due to socalled 

labor crafts law,and in the cases of offices, soldiers, and civil service 

employees, it was due to official commands, which means transfers without 

regarding the wishes of the individual. The numbers of those members 

which were not voluntary in the Foreign Intelligence Service until 1943 

was about thirty-five percent; 1944 was far over fifty percent.

MR. TAYLOR: Let the affidavits submitted with no objection be 

marked SD 61 for identification.

CAPTAIN CONKLIN: There is no objection.

DR. GAWLIK: 3D No. 62, Walter Schellenberg, SD-Ausland only 

existed until 14 February 1944, and at that time was incorporated due to 

its fusion vath the military counter intelligence into a nevi organization 

of secret information service.

151 TAYLOR: There being no objection,let the affidavit be narked 

SD 62 for identification.

DR. GAILIK: The next affidavit No. 63 concerned itself with 

Amt VII. Iwant to state here especially I did not hand in any affidavits 

concerning Amt VII; so far I did not question any witness concerning their
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organization.

COLONEL SMIRNOV: If I am not mistaken Amt VII does not belong 

to the accused criminal organization. If I am not mistaken it was only III 

IV and VI that were accused of being in a criminal organization.

DR. GAVLIK: I do agree heartily with the Russian Prosecutor.

I myself am not sure whether or not Amt VII is among the accused organiza­

tion. However, up to now the prosecution has never made this point clear, 

therefore , it was my cuty as defense lawyer to defend Amt VII with all the 

othe rs._______

csee-----asx I refer when I make this statement tothe indie t- 

nent vhch accuses Amt III,IV and VI,but which does not mention Amt VII. 

That is correct only in the indictment where only Amt III, IV and VI are 

mentioned. However,the indictment also speaks of thesD as a unit. If the 

prosecution agrees with me,and states that Amt VII is not among the ac­

cused organization, then, of course, I will recall the affidavit.

NR TAYLOR: The objection of the prosecution will be noted by the 

Tribunal,and for the purpose of the record the affidavit will be marked 

SD 63 for identification; provided there is no chargeagainst Amt VII, the 

affidavit, of course, is surplusage,and is of no value,but in order to make 

the record the Commission is going to receive the affidavit into evidence.

DR. GAMLIK: SD No. 63, Dr. Paul Dittel. Amt VII was completely 

independent organization aside from the interior intelligence service from 

Amt III,and Foreign Intelligence Service VI. The members of Amt VII did not 

know there was a secretive plan to carry out crimes against the peace, of 

war crimes,and crimes against humanity. It was not the duty of Amt VII to carry 

out spy duties for the Gestapo. Amt VII did not cooperate in war crimes 

listed under 6A or L. Amt VII did not have a duty to osecu, the o
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and the church.

MR TAYLOR: Let’s go to No. 64.

DR. GAVLIK: 3D affidavit No. 64 concerns itself with the Immigration 

Central Office . This is a repudiation of the statement that the Immigration 

Central Office had the duties to evacuate certain areas,with a goal of 

continued colonization of occupied territories, or the destruction of the 

national existence, and, the ref ore, to further German influence, (trial brief 

against the S3 3-G,page 33 and 35 in the German translation )

MR TAYLOR: Any objections to t he affidavit?

CAPTAIN CONKLIN: No objection.

DR. GAVLIK: SD No. 64, -'artin Sandberger, Immigration Office,did 

not have the duty to evacuate people from occupied territories inorder to 

colonize these occupied territories, or to destroy the national existence 

in order to insure a continual enlargement of the German borders.

MR TAYLOR: There being no objection,the affidavit will be 

marked SD No. 64 for identification. Any further affidavits?

DR GAWLIK: No, that is all. I have no more.

MR TAYLOR: he the Commission will adjourn until two o’clock.

(The Commnission adjourned for noon recess until 1400 hours)
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The foregoing is a true and correct transcript of the submission 

of Affidavits by DR, GAWLIK, taken on 23 July 1946.

•

CERTIFIED TO ::

•

ML0MwL
Reporter (pp —//

Repbr ter (pp /9 —/,

Reporter (pp /7— //

F = P c /67 - 12 

.ae (



23 JulJ-J.II-]

SUBMISSION OM DTID.VIIS 3% TII 
DIFZNSE PURSUANT TO 2111 ORDIR OF TIE 
TRIBUIL D..TD 5 Jury 1906.

23 July 194,

CO. -.SSIONLR :

Goorgo R. Taylor.

(TEC COITISSI IT COITV.ITD T 1000 TOUTS.)

T— -0-SS1OR : The ooms si on vill convene for the 

purpose of honring the afficavits o? the SD as sum.ttod 

b3 Dr • Covlik. c are ready to proceed*

■ R • CLIK * Ty first nizt is to prove the tasks, cins and 

activities of the SD since its founding uz to the ostablislmon 

of the RST, and in connection with this that the SD dic not 

talo part in any conspiracy in order to corit crinoe accordin. 

to -rticlo 6 of the statute, nor did it support any such con­

spiracy.

The affidavits covoring this period of time are to support 

the tostksony of Dr. Spaonyler, ho has boon nsl.c for and has 

not yet appoaro for intorro ation,

ED: .27 3 heo been nndo by Dr. Albert Karl 

Tilholn albert an refers first to the tino bot-oon 1931 on- 

30 Jqnuqry, 1933. It speaks of first of the tasks and the 

officos of the leaders and lecturers, the noctines one the 

offices for tho protection of the conorel gS. Then it cocs 

on to say that tho activities vero entirely without importance. 

In the entire of Bornany, there oro about tent- to twenty 

five persons employed -nd about to twenty five honorary nor sons
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Coinc this vork. They ha''1 not been trainod, there- vas no 

responsible net of confidonco non, Tvory support or consion 

for an osponac system was lacking. Tho mcrors ci not at- 

tonpt to support a roup of conspirators, The octivitios verc 

consiCoro by the Republic as local an’ roforring from the 

ti o fro.- January 30, 1933 until the osbablislent of the 

RSIL., the task of the SS intolli cnco organization ra .rally 

fell auny altogether. In 1933 or in 1030, the S3 main Cfico 

of its ovm was cstablisho. The task was to obs rvo anc evalu­

ate the information clocnoc. for the incoloctual disputes of 

tho party, from 1933 until 1933 there woro not asiyot a suf­

ficient nuuor of non or honorary non for a net of intolli :onc 

work or news service* In 1938 the Central Division 11,1 was 

done away vith. This Doparonont concomc it sell vth informa­

tion concernin'- opponents. The central division 11,1 was fur­

ther built up. The vital ncu service for thc Inlands-'/1' vas 

combined in Art 111.

In 1939 there was an on” to this ovclop ent because of ti 

plocing; of imt ill within the nSILL. 10 - orle vas carrio ’ on in 

secret. Confidence men toro not obli o: to keep their activi­

ties coc: ob. There were no spyin • activities, there was no 

close communion botucon the Gestapo an’ tho SD. no orders 

wore civonto supervise election. The persecution of Jova did 

not belong to the tasks of cho S . Tho S’ or parts of this 

organisation Ci ot tako part in lc Jewish boycott of 

4 -pril 1933 an" in the propra: . of the 9th of hovcnler, 1938, 

there v/es no support of any- cona-inac-.

TIh COISSIOITER : hro thor on objections on the part 

of the prosecution to this a fidavit?

CPT.IT CONKLING : No objections.

Till COISSION.R : The affidavit, as sul wit tel, ill be 

marked SD No. 27 for identification,
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De CLIK 3 I now subrtit --I.VIP SD KO, 28 by

1. ..lbort Karl ’ 11ho1m1.

itll this affidavit I vant to refute the clnr/o o? t\c

prosocution that the SD ha. ho task to mthor secret info ma- 

tion about actual or probable opponents of the Taz1 -ov- so 

that proper steps for the Costruction or for the injumy of 

t e opposition coule be taken,

I refer horo to the trial brief - Costopo an-, a stetoncnt 

of oviConco in B, pa-e 17 of the Inelish text and -no 13 

of the Gomnn translation.

T• Karl lbort ilholl in his a icavit snic tlint the 

SD vns civontho followin’ task by Iley' rich, first, that the 

corinc on o tho intolligonco and inf omet i on service of 

t...o 8. rust bo above and bcyon- "11007 cases 46 c

ha n t on- task of fincing out individual cases in order to 

have then SUffor executively, his ‘..os the tasks on -"c 

police offices, which were or nen.no for this -umocc,

---i CO : ISSIODER 8 ny objections to this nf "ovit as 
sulmic6o0?

crz.m COILIITG ; Po objections,

II CC : ISSIOl OR : Tho nfRi avit as cubnitto - • ill be 

nnrlco SDFIDVIT1.28 Cor iontificction.

C.U..LIK : op, x,f fin avit J 20, vac iven by Enns m irnior 

nenn. Ulis affidavit concerns itself vibh the tasks, nile n- 

activities of tho branch offices ant". tho confidential a"ants 

"ho orko there, an" that in connection al th thie, that the 

airs, tasks and activities of the branch offices and conion- 

ticl events vm not ono or supportin eng consrirc or talinc 

port in the co:zzittan of c:22:c6 agoinet ponco, or orinzoo 
ape ins t hu teni t - .
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In this nffiavit, Tirmorann soys thnt thc task of the 

conf id ent ial ngonts vrns to hanc in objociivo reports concomnin 

the cnoral public fcolinp an' thus take port in fincing ut 

vhat tore the Ccopor possibility for any 110.1 cvolojon0s an 

irro culeritios • The confi "ont ial accnos voro not suppose; to 

take part in the irpunitivo prosecution of iniviucl persons. 

The noos of confif ont ial mon wovo in principal not to bo mon- 

tiono '. Those confident ial a pouts did not bclong to on secret 

consgrecy croup with the ain of co: mitt inc crimos ncninst 

peace, uar o.nf hunnnity. the branch offices wroro not a link 

in the chain of an ospionago organization for the purpose of 

koepin the conspirators an’ criminals in power, or support­

in'- then. or in thomsolvos takin-: - art in crimcs ananst « — 

peace, humanity or war.

TIT] COISSIOITR : iny o’ joctions to the nffi"nvij as 

sulom 1tod ?

C.TTIT COTILITC : No objections.

_ __ CO] I ISSIOlT I 2 Lo c c 110 O' li0nvit as SU— m1000( oo 

narlco 1 3D -T IT I'. VIT No. 2 9 for i'ont ification.

PR, CLII 3 The next is ST L.VINO. 30 piven by 

Theodor Zollor. This affidavit treats with the repudiation 

of the charco of the prosecution, that the SD carried on it 

voPlt in secret and refers to the trial riof apoinst the 

Costcpo and SD, siatacnt of affidavit 5-, 1 ag 0 17 of the 

nglisl text and pope 16 of olno Connan translation.

In this affidavit Teller nontions that the activities 

of the 3D were not secret
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CC - TSS-om R : -ro thoro any objoctiono to tho 

ccavit as submittod ?

C.T2.I CO.' KLING : ITo objections.

E OCTSSI01CR ; The ECLCovit, ca sulnitto", vin 0 
morlcoc for icc t if icati on as ADPIDVIT 10. 30:

PR, GLIK 3
Horst. It concerns

SD_m==VI.-O•31 is rivon by ' r. 

tho tasks, ais an. activities of t‘ c
officers omployoc within the s- as coni onco mion of the *hicb

sunuo ene comunit3• In connection with this, thnt the cis, 
tasks « cctivitios "cro not as to support n conspirec
or corrit orires cminst -onco, wor Or hwnit-.
-orsi says in his nf ficavii chat tho omplogccs

"1’° en to tho 2rincipalos of lov on
OPCor, cleanliness and ocono----.

T1— COTISSIONER

SD -ffidavi t Io. 31.
-3 objociono to ho sumicsi on o

C-T.T. COIIKLINIG No 0 joctions.
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213 COlISSIONTR : Lot chc affCavt as sul mit C ' bo 1rkor

SD-nI-VIE NO. 31.

DR. C.l LIK : SD -.IDID.LVI 1IC. 32 is rivon by Otto hlondor 

It ia suposOC to refute tho charco of the prosecution thnt 

the C. tas a port of tho 33 curin' the entire tine fron its 

Councing until the cnd of the var, an introduction to the 

trial brief ngninst the Gostapo and 31 - pope 12 of the 

-nplish text and ■ apo 13 of the oron Translation - orpiment 

and. conclusion pagc 67 of tlx Inlish text and pope 31 of the 

Coren t rans la t ion.,

o wront to prove that in the year 1934, the S vas on 

independent organization. In 3D Affidavit Ho, 32 Chlcndorf 

SPJS that since 1934 the ovolopmont of the SD took port 

ontirol apart ror the tasks oricinally set by tho SS, On?- 

ten percent i the monbors of the SD inland intelligence 

service coc fron the General SS. Dy far the pronto at majority 

of honorary orkors nn® confidential ncn - al out 90 A of the 

no:ora of the SD inland woro no SS m0rDors at all and did 

not e cc one mombors. The fulillmont of tho nission, ns Covo- 

1020. Gy the SD inland itself was not bound to the person of 

the loichsfuohror ss but on the contrary, he rostr ictod 

the Ccvclopmont .

TL COTiISSIOIIR : Any objections to the affidavit as 

subni 6toC?

C.T.2 CCITLIIG : No objections.

T OONhlSSIONDR : The affidavit as subnittod vill o 

^rkod SD A PIP. AIT No. 32 for ic t ification.
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•1, C-.LIK : The next IT 3P no» 53 wes also submit-

ted or mao by Otto Ohl onc. o rf * It contains the chergos of tho 

prosecution that the SD had playoc. a role in the execution of 

one or norc of tho nissionc of the S3. (Indictnont of the S3 

11, png0 8 of the Jornan Translation.)

I vish to prove that this vas no ion per the caso in the 

period since 1934. Otto Ohcncorf scys in his affiovit the ' 

in-' ivicunl nain offices, under ho jurisdiction of Ili:uilor, 

did not operate jointly or in cooperation autonnticolly, it 

is not correct thnt the st ricin office corricc out a definite 

spocicl Mission vithin the rco-rorl of the ss. Thore va: no 

min office that coul in any nannor bo termed a leaorsh- 

office. The SD-Inlan" Iat III of tho nSIu. received its worlt, 

cins and conornl activities not from a hich corane of the 

33. T21s is also true of the fact that the duties as to trorle, 

nis and control activities voro directly on indirectly not 

civon as a supnli: lent of the vorlc, airs and gcnoral activities 

of uhe .33 nnin offices. The 3' -inland vos rather independent of 

:o tasks of the SS and police. It Covo lopod and carrioc on 

its activities as nn independent organisation.

T+ 1 C0: LISSION : Any objections to the affidavit as 

sulmitto"?

C.2.N COlKLING : Ilo objections.

-- CO -1SS-O— : Lee,tho affidavit as sulrittoc, be 

2 iar.ce 3 .‘.I fid-vit I'o. 53 for icontfication.

Lot m ---1- r -i- • - ■ • i a s 32 a.... bo cons lidatca as one exhibit 

Cor olo purpose o1 i untification one for the further reason 

--t ho trio nf1 Covits were Co ly 6hc smo person. Dr. Camlk 

Co you ha ve any objections?

DR. G.LIK : No objections.
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• C.. LIK : Concernin'” 11 next arruont, I submit 

thiroo cfiCnvits. riDAVITj 3D 34- - 35 one, 364 These three 

clfi0nvits refer to the fret that the SD m3, qcstego havo 

aluc.8 lcon inoponcant organisations one. worc not cobincc in 

a unjlom1 police systom. (Tcpudcton of the chargo of tlc

Prosecution Statoront of viConco 11 D one 111 B of the trial 

brief 9 and 18 of the nglish Translation*

S. -h:TD..VIT lie. 34 i/as naco by Richar Iilcobrandt and 

Civos 21001 that by naans of the Ilighor S3 and Police Fuehrer 

a coopooncion or a union of such a kin:’ botwoon the 3. anc 

the Costapo fi’ not take place. The hi her S3 anc Police 

-uolm01 vas not hea" of the S' -Inlan.. It tes not his nori: 

to jive any instructions concerning worl, nor Csciplino the 

organisation. The personal policy of the C“-Inland ves 

colotolJ incroncent of 11,

235: CO 1ISSI olR : ire tloro any objoctions to this 

affidavit as su- nittod ?
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COLONEL ORLOV: No objections.

THE COMISSIONER: The affidavit, as submitted, will be marked SD 

AFFIDAVIT NO._34 for identification. 

* * $: :: • *: * * *

DR. GAIILIK: Affidavit SD No. 35 made by Dr Karl-Heinz Hoffmann, says 

that by means of the establishment of the office of inspectors of the Securit 

police and SD, the Ggscapo and the SD were not united into a police system 

and one unified office.

THE COMIISSIONER: Are chcro nny objections to the affidavit as sub­

mitted?

COLONEL SMIRNOV: No objections.

THE COZISSIONER: Let the affidavit, as submitted, be marked SD 

Affidavit No. 35 for identification.

* * * * ****

DR. GAILIK: SD Affidavit No. 36 submitted by Otto Ohlendorf prives that 

the decree of the Reichsminister of the Interior of November 11, 1938 — 

PS-1638 — did not correspond to the actual relationship to the SD and 
1

S curity Police, but only represents an intended regulation in the picture an 

therefore connot be considered as proof that it belonged to the aims and 

tasks of the SD to support the S curity Police.

THIE COMISSIONER: Iny objections to the affidavit as submitted?

COLONEL SMIRNOV: e are of the opinion that statements in the affidavit 

are incorrect, but as the affidavit has been properly given and made, it is 

impossible to raise an objection now, however, wo shall submit our own 

affidavits later to refute them.

THE COMMISSIONER: The Commission grants this privilege to the prosecu- 

ti n on all these affidavits, but the record will show the objection to any 

affidavit as submitted.

I note from the record you have statements from Otto Ohlendorf in SD 

Affidavits 32, 33, 36, 40, 44 and 46. Is that the same person?

DR. GAWLIK: Yes

THE COMMISSIONER: In order to clarify the record before the Tribunal, I 

suggest that wo consolidate the six affidavits by Ohlendorf as one exhibit in 
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order that he may cet his testimony before the Tribunal in one affidavit 

rather than in six affidavits. Any objections. Dr. Gawlik?

DR. GAILIK: N objections.

THT CONI SSIONER: Let the record show that SD Affidavits Nos. 32, 33, 

36 , 40, 44 and 46 are consolidated for the purpose of the record in sub- 

mission to the Tribunal.

Let the affidavit as submitted be marked SD Affidavit No. 36.

*, *: * * * * *

DR. GWLIK: I now submit affidavits Nos. 37 and 33, which are a 

supplement to the affidavit of Dr. Wilhelm Hoettle -- PS 2614 of November 

5, 19 5, Both affidavits refer to the fact that Hoettle was only employed 

with the SD-Inland in Austria and that he does not have a sufficient knowledg 

of the tasks, aims and activities of the SD-Inland within the boundaries of 

December 31, 1937. (The tasks and objectives of the SD 111 B of the Trial 

Brief, pare 13 of the English text.)

SD !vvidavit by Dr. Milhelm Hocttl says that he was employed within the 

SD service sector in Vienna from Mcrch, 1938 until the summer of 1939, that 

later he was only employed in the foreign intelligence service division. 

He does not know of the activities of the SD-Inland within the German Reich 

proper. He says that the knowledgo concerning the tasks, aims and activities 

of the SD-Inland within the G.rman Reich proper were established in the main 

on the basis of reports. These reports did not show that the SD-Inland was 

talcing part in a conspiracy for the committing of crimes against peace, war, 

and. humanity. The SD did not possess any immediately influence on the 

selection of the leaders of the party.

COLONEL ORLOV: I have an objection against this affidavit as it is not 

in accord with the rules concerning the submission of affidavits by the 

Defense pursuant to the order of the Tribunal dated July 5, 1946.
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order that he may get his testimony before the Tribunal in one affidavit 

rather than in six affidavits. ‘ny objections, Dr. Gawlik?

DR. GA/LIK: N, objections,

TEE COMMISSIONER: Lot the record show that SD Affidavits Nos. 32, 33, 

36, 40, 44 and 46 are consolidated for the purpose of the record in sub­

mission to the Tribunal.

Let the affidavit as submitted be marked SD Affidavit No. 36.

> *: :: > * $e *

DR. GAWLIK: I now submit affidavits Nos. 37 and 38, which are a 

supplement to the affidavit of Dr. Wilhelm Hoettle — PS 2614 of November 

5, 19 5. Both affidavits refer to the fact that Hoettle was only employed 

with the SD-Inlnnd in Austria and that he does not have a sufficient knowledge 

of the tasks, aims and activities of the SD-Inland within the boundaries of 

December 31, 1937. (The tasks and objectives of the SD 111 B of the Trial 

Brief, page 18 of the English text.)

SD fwidavit by Dr. Hilhelm Hoettl says that he was employed within the 

SD service sector in Vienna from March, 1938 until the summer of 1939, that 

later he was only employed in the foreign intelligence service division, 

do does not know of the activities of the SD-Inland within the German Reich 

proper. He says that the knowledge concerning the tasks, aims and activities 

of the SD-Inland within the Gorman Reich proper were established in the main 

on the basis of reports. These reports did not show that the SD-Inland was 

taking part in a conspiracy for the committing of crimes against peace, war, 

and humanity. The SD did not possess any immediately influence on the 

selection of the leaders of the party.

COLONEL ORLOV: I have an objection against this affidavit as it is not 

in accord with the rules concerning the submission of affidavits by the 

Defense pursuant to the order of the Tribunal dated July 5, 1946.
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COLONEL ORLOV: I have an objection against this affidavit. The 

Jitness, Dr, Hoettl, vho hinsolf tas employed by the SD is basing his testimony 

solely on, as I mentioned before, these reports, and these reports are of ne 

importance or interest to this Commission,

DR. GULIK: I quite agrce with the Russian Prosecutor that Dr. Hoettl 

is not a well cnough informed witness, /but Dr, Hoettl is a witness for the 

Prosecution, and this sworn affidavit as been submitted by mo in orler to 

prove that the witness is incompetent to testify, I an c rateful for the fact 

that the Russian Prosecutor agrees wish te.

COLONLSLIRNOV: The natter at issue here is to find cut vhhother the 

affidavit submitted by Dr. H_cttl tr. sad to establish positive or negative 

facts,

DR. G.ULIK: The affidavit by Dr, illian Hoettl was submitted by the 

prosecution in support of its indictment of the SD.

In T.ILOR: Colonel Orlov, the affidavit as submitted was for the 

purpose of refuting the statement and affidavit of the affiant as submitted in 

the Prosebution brief, on page 18 of the Pros e cutie n brief.

DR. GULIK: I want to disprove what the Russian Prosecut or has just 

sai , hat is, that Hoettl has not a c fficiont knowledge concerning this 

topic or this theme.

COLOI-L ORLOV: Could we hove a short recess to read this affidavit? 

mi. TiYLOR: Yec, tho Corr ission will recess for ten minutes.

(A tonminute recess is talcon.)

COLONL S2IIRN V: lir. Comissionor, I an of the opinion that the 

supplement of the affidavit by Dr. II-ctol should not be accepted. The 

afeid vit as has been submitted does not only concern the German Reich proper 

but also tno occupied territories, and speaks of the territories within the 

R ich, as well as in the occupied territories after 1938 and 1939, vhercas, 

the supplement also refers to this an.. nothing now can be added to what has 

alrendy been s a id in the first affilavit. Therefore, the supplement to the 

first affidavit should not be accepted,

C-PIN CONKLIN: I thinl it is wo1l understood that the SD is pretty 

much the same in Austria and Germany in their tasks, and aslong as the nan Hoott.
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was a qualified memocr in Austria, I thinlt it is inmatcrial vhethor he 

bolongod to the SD in the German Reich and knew their plan.

in, T.YLOR: I think it is all richt. For the purpose of tho 

record let it be noted that the Russian Prosecution and the American 

Prosecution have objected to the affidavit, which is marked SD No. 37 for 

i lentificction, as being irrelevant, and that the objection vri.ll be submitted 

to the Tribunal for their ruling. The affidavit itself vri.ll be narked SD 437 

for identification.

DR. GLULIK: I should like to add that I do not wrant to prove writh 

this affidavit anything concerning the activities and objectives of the SD. 

hy sole purpose in submitting this affidavit is to prove that Dr. Hoctt 

was crployod vith the SD from Larey 7.38 until tho summer of 1939 in Germany.

IR, TiYLOR: Very well, the record will show that. TThat about 

affidavit No. 38 new?

DR. G.ULIK: Affidavit No. . was submitted by Theo Gahrmann.

Thee Gahrmann refutes the statomont of Loottl conccrnine the activities of 

Group III B. Group III B did not issue any instructions or directives in 

ritinc nor orally, which sh wed that ho SD considered the forcien worlcers 

in Gorcny inferior. The instructions of Ant III B rather were issued with 

the purpose of tolling about the attitude and opinions of the foreign workers 

in the different spheres of life.

IR. TLYLOR: Is there any objection to affidavit No. 38? 

COLONL ORLOV: No objection.

UR, T.YLOR: Let the affidavit submitted be marked SD No. 38 for 

i dontifica tion.

DR. G--ULIK: The next affidavit, SD No. 39, vas given by Adam 

oortsch and concerns the repudiation f the charge of the prosecution that the 

SD had an irmcdiate and authoritative nluenco upon the selection of the Nazi 

leaders. (See trial brief against the Gestapo and the SD, Statement of 

Evidence III B, page 18 of the English text) Lr. Foertsch says in his affidavit 

that in the former gnu of upper Bavaria the SD had no material or authoritative
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influenco up ,11 the seloction of the party lcadors,

COLOICL ORLOV: lie objection,

1m, TILOR: The affidavit subnitted will be marked SD No. 39 for 

identification.

* * * * -x- * * * * *

DR. G.ULIK: 1ty next affidavit is BD No. L0, by Otto Ohlendorff, znd 

is supposed to replace the testimony of Seibert, whom I asked for and applied 

for and who has not yet appeared here. This affidavit concerns itself with 

the aims, tasks and activities of Group III D of the RSIL, and in connection 

vith this that Group III D did not support any conspiracy and did not take part 

in die cormittinc of crimes aminsb peace, war crimes and crimes against 

hunanitj. Otto Ohlendorff says in his affidavit that it was the task of 

Croup III D to the office that concornod themselves with economic questions 

concerning any naldevclopents rhich had been worked out by the numerous 

trainod, conidontial agents, and thus to bservo especially any criticcl 

voicos within the population and to nakc positive succesti ns.

Group III D, Economy of the .r , especially did not take part in the 

deportation of nationals of the occupied territories for forced labor and in 

the control of these foreign laborers,

-R• TAYLOR: Any objection to tho affidavit as submitted? 

COLONEL ORLOV: No cbjecti n.

-e TAYLOR: For the purpose of the record let the affidavit be marked 

SD No. 40 for identification and reference made to the ether affidavit submitted

* * % * * * * * * *

DR. GAULIK: affidavit Fll to 746, inclusive refer to the 

Tinsatzcruppen, Acti ns Group in the East, and these affidavits refer to war 

crimes. (See Statement of Evidence # VI A of the Trial Brief, page 25 of the 

-nclish text). The first affidavit SD %l, submitted by Karl Heinz Bendt, 

speaks (a) of the action groups with i o hruy Groups A, B, 0, D, and that they 

did not belong to the organization of the inland SD, Int III, R.S.H.A. () 

The nembcrs of the inland SD, Ant III. R.S.H.A. had in general no lenmlodeo 

of the mass executions in the East.

C.PLIN CONUKLIN: No object.'. n.
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-m• TYLOR: Let the affidavit be narked SD (/L,1.

* * * * * * * * * *

DR. GAULIK: SD /1,2, mibnitted by alter SehcLLcnbcrg sayB that the 

Action Groups onployod with the Aztiy Gr-oups, a, D, c, D in tho Eest dac not 

belong to tie foreign intelligenco service, Ant VI, R.S.H..

C.PTKIN C ONKLIN: NTo objection.

T- T-to: Since there is no objection, let the affidavit be marked 

SD /L2.

* -5:- * * * %•
DR GULIK: SD $13, Heins Tozndngor says that'tho Action groups 

were not composod of volunteers.

-R• TAYLOR: Any objection to the affidavit?

CAPTAIN CONKLIN: No.

IR• TXLOR: The affidavit wrill be narked SD 1/L3.

* * • * * -x- x. *

DH. C-ULT: SD 71, also by Otto Ohlendort seys that vith tho Action 
Groups, A, B, C, D. no parts of the r ization of the SD offices II; VI and 

VII were used.

LR, TAYLOR: Let the affidavit bo narked SD ,),L,.
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DR. GIILIK: SD No. -1-5 by ERWIN SCHULZ says that the selection of Chiefs 

of the A tions Groups an of the action commandos did not take place accordinc 

to thoir previous capacities, nor according to there activities as Chiefs of 

Office, Gruvpenleiter, or Cc sultant in the offices of the R.S.H.h. or as an 

inspector of the Security Police andSD in a definite sector or as a Chief of 

Office of a group of the S_curity police or SD.

MR, TAYLOR: Any Objection

The affidavit will be marked SD No. 45 for identification. 
% 

> *: ******

DR. GANLIK: Affidavit No. 46 also by OTTO OHLENDORF says that the Action 

Groups with the Army Groups, A. 3. C. D. were special organizations.

IRR. TAYLOR: Any objections to the affidavit?

Let the affidavit be marked SD No. 46 for identification. For the 

-purpose of submitting to the Tribunal, reference is made to affidavits No. 46, 

44, 40, 36, 33 and 32 being made by the same affiant, OTTO OHLENDORF.

* • * *: $ * ***

DR. GANLIK: My next three affi avits SD. Nos. 47, 48 and 49 are to prov 

that the members of tho service districts of the branch offices and the con­

fidence men had no knowledge of the activities of the A tion Groups employed 

in the East. As follows, SD No. 47 made by HILHELM DYROFF for Gau Sued- 

Hannover, Braunschweig; SD No. 48 oy KARL HEINZ BENDT, for SD Senior Sector 

North, Stettin, Breslau, Duesseldor?; SD No. 49, ADOLF OTT, for the SD Sector 

Neustadt, Wcinstrasse and Saarbruecken.

NR. TYLOR: Any objection to the affidavits?

Let tho affidavits be marked SD Nos. 47, 48 and 49 for identification.

* * * * * * ***

DR. GILIK: My next affidavit, SD No. 50 by HEINZ INNVINGER, is to 

prove that Puetz vas an official of the Gestapo, and not as mentioned on 

Page 26 of the English Text of the Trial Brief against the Gestapo an'! SD, a 

member of the SD.

R. TAYLOR: Any objections to the affidavit?

Affidavit as submitted will be marked SD No. 50 for identification*
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DR. GAVLIK: The next affidavit SD Mo, 51 by VALTER SCHELLENBERG refers 

to crimes acainst war. Statement of Evidence VI F of the Trial Brief, Pa-e 

54 of the English Text). Statement of Evidence — the SD had no hand in 

lynching justice. Schellenberg says as a supplement to the affidavit of 13 

November 1945, 2990-PS: ‘'The hostile attitude towards English and American 

aviators was not to be promoted by the SD, but by the Security Police."

CAPT. CONKLIN: No objection.

MR. TAYLOR: Let the affidavit be marked SD No. 51 for identification.

* * * * ***** *

DR. GAWLIK: My next affidavit is SD No. 52 by "IILHELM KEITEL, referring 

to the following. In the documenbs of the indictment, 553-ps, 498 FS, and 532 

PS., the Security Police is to be understood by any reference to the SD not 

the inland intelligence service AMT III nor the foreign intelligence service 

AIT VI or AMT VII. In this affidavit Keitel says: "During the trial in 

P rnberg, I realized that the conception which is also preveland in military 

circles concerning the tasks and work of the SD as a police executive organ 

is not correct. It is rather the case that very often in military language 

ond in regulations, the letters SD are mentioned — if on the other h^nd the 

competent organ of police with executive power is really meant. Therefore, 

it really should have said Chief of Security Police and SD, instead of just 

the abbreviation SD. As far as the "ish command of the a,my is concerned, I 

can declare that in some of the offices, there was a mistaken conception 

concerning the authority of the SD in this respect, and that this has led to 

a wrong use of the abbreviation SD."

AR. TAYLOR: Any objection to the affidavit?

COL. SMIRNOW: No objection.

MR TAYLOR: The affidavit submitted will be marked SD No. 52 for 

identification.

*********
DR. GAHLIK: The next affidavit, SD No. 53 by EMIL PROESCHEL, refers to 

the persecution of the Jews, Statement of Evidence VII A, pace 60 of the 

English text of the Trial Brief). roeschol says that the SD did not have a
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hand in Anti-S mitic programs of the year 1938, 

IU. TAYLOR: Any objection?

The affidavit submitted will be marked SD No. 53 for identir icnti on.

*** ****

DR. GA/LIK; -he next affidavit No. 54 refers to the persecution of the 

Jcws in France. The affidavit was submitted by DR. HOETST LUBE, and he says 

that the SD did not h v e a hand in J wish persecutions in France. 
I 

CAPT. CONKLIN: No Objection, 

MR.TAYLOR: Affidavit will be marked SD No. 54 for identification.

& * * * *******
DR. GAWLIK: Next affidavit of TECO. GAHRMANN concerns itself with the 

persecution of the church. Statement of evidence VII-B, pnge 63 of the nglis! 

translation of the Trial Brief. "The activities of the church commission of 

the SD was not to bring about measures to persecute the church* The reports 

of the SD only were to give leadership an indication of the religious move­

ment within the various denominations and the result of measures by the leader 

ship groups, -he confidence men of the SD did not serve as spies to cooperate 

with the Gestapo activities against church members. The SD Amt III did not 

concern itself at all with any church questions. The church committee of 

the Gestapo was not the successor of Abteilung Il/13."
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MR. T..YLC: Any objections?

^fidavit as submitted will be marked SD 455 for

i dentificaticn.

* * * * * * * * * * * *

DR. GAWLIK: The nextaffidaviris supposed to take the place of 

Helmut Fromm who already had becneccepted as a witness, but could not be 

heard any more. I want to prove with this the duties, g cals, and activities 

and methods of the SD in the Government General, and its conmection with the --
fact that the members of the SD which were active in the Government General 

did not aid in the conspiracies and in thecarrying out of crimes, according 

to article VI of the statute. "In the Government General there was no 

cooperation between the SD and the Gestapo. The Abteilung ill were sepanated 

both by organization in their duti. - and activities from theoffices of 

the Security Folice. kersons which had to do nothing were not connected 

with the SP or Amt III seem to be members of the SD in the Government 

General. The SD with the Government General only had the intelligence goal. 

The SD in the Government General A not participate in the conspiracy. 

The SD did not have a special function in the Government General to find 

out and to execute persons that were racially or politically unwanted. The 

ST) in the Government General was not responsible for the erection and the 

acministrati on of concentration camps or for the extermination camp through 

forced labor and m ss murder. The SD did not carry or did not have to carry 

out the measures which are mentioned in documents L-37, L-53 and L-63. The 

ST) did not have any prisons in the Government General. The only prisons 

were of the Gestapo. The ST) did not participate in the deportation of 

citizens of the occupied territories in the Government General.”

MR. TAYLOR; Any objection to the affidavit? 

CFT. CONKLIN: No objections.

MR. T.YLCR: Affidavit will be marked sn $56 for identification.

DR. G.WLIK: I want to prove my next four documents, Nos. 57 to 6c 

inclusive, that the membersh.p of f ... ST and Amt III was usually not volun­

tary but having its basis in the decree of an order.

3061



23 July1915-TMR-2
Affidavits - SD

-0048

SD No» 57 being Bcrnard Bilger । formerly of Gau Kaernten. 

Membership of the SD was accordin to official order 57.2 percent of 

male, and 53*8 percent of female members; 55.9 percent of all members 

of the SD belonged to the organization due to result of official decrees

COLONEL SMIRNCV: I believe that it would be better instead of 

presenting these affidavits , the defense would present these official 

decrees according to whi.ch these people are joined. I think then we could 

judge as to the percentage of people that had to go to the organization.

DR. GAWLIK: I don ‘t kncv for sure right now, but I believe I 

do have that decree in my document book,. However, if I do not, I, of 

course, am ready to introduce this document into my document book.

COLONEL SMIINUV: I believe it is only possible for us to dis­

cuss these affidavits, if we have the decrees in front of us, and if we 

can look at that decree, because I personally do not believe that such a 

clecree does actually exist.

MR. TAYLOR: The defense having stated that it would submit the 

decree in its document book, with that understanding the affidavits Nos.. 

57, 58, 59 and 60 will be received and marked for identification,

DR. GAVLIK: Yes. SD No. 58, Dr. Hans Ehlich. The composition 

of Group 3B; the membership of 85 percent of the members of Group 33 was 

due to official Acrees. The 3 Abteilungslcitern section chiefs, two 

belonged to the SD due to this official order. 32 percent of the experts, 

and committee members belonged to the SB due to these official orders.

SB No. 59, Karl-Heins Bendt, SD-Loitabschnitt Duesseldorf. The 31 male 

members, 15 belonged to the SD due to official decrees — individual member­

ship due to official 1 ecrees of 3 section chiefs only; of 4 aids three;

of 11 liaison chiefs, four; of 7 managers of liaison positions, three, and 
* 

of 6 aid, four.

SD No. 60. Adolf Ott, SD-ibschnitt Snarbrue cken, Gaugebiet Saar- 

pfalz einschliesslich Lothringen. 76 members of which 34 belonged to the 

SB due to official orders.

The next two affidavits, Nos. 61 and 62, concern themselves with mt 

VI, and so far I have not presented any witnesses, or any affidavits cor- 
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cerninz L.mt VI, and therefore this summary of 61 is a little bit nre 

sensitive. The duties, goals, and activities of Amt VI, especially that 

it was not one of the duties, activities and goals of Imt VI to aid a 

conspiracy, or crimes against the peace, wrar crimes, or crimes against 

humanity. -Lso theorganization of Imt VI was completely independent am 

of membership of the organization of Amt VI was generally not voluntary 

due to off icial d ecrces; and, further, that the activity of Group VIwas 

not generally known, partly not even t. the chief of Imt VI.

SD No. 61. Walter Schellenborg, The Foreign Intelligence Service, 

Amt VI was an independent organizati n which was in no connection with 

mt III or IV, or VII, or t he ISHI, and the SS. One can speak of an 

official connoction with Amt in and VII only partially and with certain 

limitations. The mt VI did nco participate in a conspiracy to carry 

out crimes according to Irticle 6 of the Statute, and which did not aid 

in such conspiracy in any way. The reas ns and activities of Group VIS 

were not completely open, andpart?y were known only to a small circle 

and partly was not known at all to members of Amt VI.

Amt IV did net participate in war crimes, as there mentioned in the 

trial brief against the Gestapo nd SD underNo. a-2L.

TR. GANLIK: 6A

THE INTERPRETER: 6A-2L, and it was n t used. to carry out

these crimes. The Amt VI did n t give any orders C ncerning mass executions 

in the East. A large part of th: personnel of the Foreign Intelligence 

Service of Amt VI and military were not volunteers, but bather their 

a ctivity was due to so-calle d labor crafts law, and in the case of

offices, soldiers, and civil service employees, it was due to official 

commands, which means transfers without regarding the wishes of the 

individual. The numbers these members which were not voluntary in the 

Foreign Intelligence Service until 1913 was sab ut thirty-five percent; 

194 was far over fifty percent.

M, TAYLER: Let the affidavits submitted with no objection

be marked SD 61 for identification.
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CFTIIN CONKLIN? There is no objection!

TR. GAVLIK: SD No. 62, Walter Schellenberg, SD-usland only 

existed until 14 February 1941, and at tint time was incorporated due to 

its fusion with the military counter intelligence into a new organization 

of secret informati n service.

MR. TYLOR: There being nodjection, the affidavit will be 

marked SD 62 f r identification.

DR. GIVLIK: The next affidavit No. 63 concerned its .If writh 

lmt VH. I want to state hero especially I did not hand in any affidavits 

concerning Lmt VII; so far I did not question any witness concerning their
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organization.

COLONEL SLLIRNOV: If I am not mistkenc, ant VII does net belong 

to the accused criminal organization. If I em not mistaken it was 

only ill, iv and VI that were accuser’ of being criminal organization.

DR. GAILICK: I do agree heartily vith the Russian Prosecutor.

I myself am not sure whether or not . t VII ir among th e accused 

organization. However, upt to now th. prosecution has never made 

this point clear, therefore, it wa... my duty as defense lawyer to 

defend Amt VII with all the others. I ref ere when I make this 

statement to t he indictment which accused Amt III, IV and VI, but 

which does not mention ant VII. That is correct only on the in­

dictment where only Amt III, IV and VI are mentioned. However, 

the indictment also speaks of the sr as a unit. If the prose­

cution agrees with me, an states t} t Amt VII is not arong the 

accused organization, then, of course, I vill recall the affidavit.

MR. T.YLOR: The objection of the prosecution will be moted by 

the Tribunal, and for the purpose of the record the affidavit will 

be marked SD 63 for identification; provided there is no charge 

against Amt VII, the affidavit, of course, is surplus, and is of 

no value, but in order to make the record, the Commission is going 

to receive the affidavit into evidence.

DR. G..LIK: SD No. 63, Dr. Paul Dittel, Amt VII was completely 

independent organization aside from the interior intelligence service 

from Amt III, and Foreign Intelligence Service VI. The members of 

rat VII did not know there was a secretive plan to carry out crimes 

against the peace, of war crimes, and crimes against humanity. It 

was not the duty of Amtt VII to carry out spy duties for the Gestapo. 

Amt VII did not cooperate in war crimes listed under 6A or L. Amt 

VII did not have a duty to persecute the Jews end the Church. «
MR. TAYLOR: Let's go on to No. 62.

DR. GAVLIK: SD affidavit No.64 concerns itself with the Immigration 

Central Office. This is a repudiation of the statement th at the Immi­

gration Central Office had the duties to evacuate certain areas, with a
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Coal of continued colonization of occupied tcrritors, or the destruc­

tion of the national existence, and, therefore, to further Gcrman in­

fluence, (trial brief against the ss-3-G, page 33 and 35 in the German 

translation).

IR. T.YLOR: Any objections to the affidavit?

CAPTAIN CONKLIN: No. objection.

DR. GAVILIK: SD No. 64, Martin Sandberger, Immigration Officer, did 

not have to duty to evacuate people from occupied territories in order 

to colonize these occupied territories, or to destroy the national 

existence in order to insure a continual enlargement of the German 

borders.

1R. T.YLOR: There being no objection, the affidavit will be 

nakred SD No. 64, for indentification. Any further affidavits?

DR. G..ULIK: No, that is all. I have no more.

MR. TAYLOUI: The Commission will adjourn until two o'clock.

(The Commission adjourned for noon recess until 1400 hours).

The foregoing is a true and correct transcript of the submitti. n of 

Affidavits by Dr. Gawlik, taken on Ao July 1946,

aLICE MEEHAN   
Reporter___________ 11

* /
ROSE W. COOK_____________
Reporter ' '" " '

BERNICE i/INKLER
Reporter

CHaALES G^LLaC-HER________ _
Reporter

CERTIFIED TO:

GEROGE R. TaYLOR
Comnis s ioner .
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